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Name: TRELISSICK

District: Cornwall (Unitary Authority)

Parish: Feock

label.localisation: Latitude: 50.217303

Longitude: -5.0416101

National Grid Reference: SW8310939683

Map: Download a full scale map (PDF)

label.localisation: [50.2207924593391,-5.03392132392392], [50.2204821021818,-5.03473711666246],

[50.2204869280086,-5.03486220799352], [50.2203207210722,-5.03525657063612],

[50.2203052132285,-5.03529231988687], [50.2202513208127,-5.03542335523811],

[50.2201744374777,-5.03560452592372], [50.2200953621145,-5.03579382896763],

[50.2200396036721,-5.03593427868244], [50.2200147101765,-5.0359814889622],

[50.2199129323612,-5.03604134021874], [50.2198040011032,-5.03610298002965],

[50.2196185971047,-5.03620967386765], [50.2195553240055,-5.03624533173174],

[50.2195045708313,-5.03628038294555], [50.2195018602226,-5.03628427665982],

[50.2194982844838,-5.03628685356156], [50.2194937538067,-5.03628810794464],

[50.2194624732449,-5.03629060699458], [50.219449141376,-5.03629130216696],

[50.2194241105499,-5.036288730329], [50.2193399011417,-5.03626501308794],

[50.2192759556244,-5.03625071527583], [50.2191712662985,-5.0362258371799],

[50.2191348496431,-5.03621146589282], [50.2190844922581,-5.0361866750571],

[50.2190580845663,-5.03617139750514], [50.2190206422553,-5.03629253784743],

[50.2189962131783,-5.03636669551181], [50.2189507000797,-5.0363458576696],

[50.2188307207732,-5.03630023947914], [50.2188166482524,-5.03629485886721],

[50.2186973580947,-5.03625040635357], [50.218609939031,-5.03621526949638],

[50.2184963819068,-5.0361717424435], [50.2183743827983,-5.03612767927323],

[50.2182166210771,-5.03607302478405], [50.2182093065375,-5.0360693831318],

[50.2181172550399,-5.03602590658779], [50.2180919466707,-5.0359459293812],

[50.2180572729376,-5.03586574006587], [50.2179749908056,-5.03567975132883],

[50.2179747182191,-5.03563864549965], [50.2179749209755,-5.03562057253491],

[50.2179749604529,-5.03559842338871], [50.2179743439489,-5.03558071898568],

[50.2179740945239,-5.03557649713215], [50.2179744209209,-5.03553305576],

[50.2179737594117,-5.03548955163799], [50.2179736299575,-5.03546010134526],

[50.2179727122163,-5.03542639497367], [50.2179719042662,-5.03538848956726],

[50.2179700152226,-5.03535752551287], [50.2179678699736,-5.03533635921032],

[50.2179658345189,-5.03531099387402], [50.2179644578382,-5.03526043432663],

[50.217965034124,-5.03523495447312], [50.2179648806733,-5.03520297905823],

[50.2179632355674,-5.03496313207204], [50.2179619307072,-5.03488229383969],
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[50.2179618389167,-5.03487892320373], [50.2179634376737,-5.03472830942315],

[50.2179630026454,-5.03451784117413], [50.2179633076834,-5.03434443279833],

[50.2179809514681,-5.03418221968838], [50.2179835032998,-5.0341568652448],

[50.2179956206215,-5.03401995360707], [50.2180567438557,-5.03404556242634],

[50.218092663676,-5.03383688999143], [50.2181942310832,-5.03387935547737],

[50.2182278883581,-5.03389296064087], [50.2182306650988,-5.03389341732403],

[50.2182334454978,-5.0338937340385], [50.2182362295551,-5.03389391078415],

[50.2182418947944,-5.03389399003933], [50.2187075493152,-5.03408031284308],

[50.2187134214101,-5.03406721220412], [50.2187462696428,-5.03397031471466],

[50.218780555287,-5.03384939349093], [50.2188046710961,-5.03377339237664],

[50.2188020975651,-5.03376860230941], [50.2188344588086,-5.03365246574078],

[50.2188499666452,-5.03359260215439], [50.2188704733054,-5.03351356764302],

[50.21889903877,-5.03340153609427], [50.218933353531,-5.0332553793813],

[50.218969585785,-5.03311845737457], [50.2190006748252,-5.03297868507805],

[50.2190281274812,-5.03284036426234], [50.2190579247816,-5.03271214653197],

[50.2190780556867,-5.0326130383659], [50.2190896962588,-5.03253245902111],

[50.2191071754809,-5.03244187507362], [50.2191368427742,-5.03232206086401],

[50.2191596733186,-5.032226348361], [50.2191766054748,-5.03215325493659],

[50.2191988001898,-5.03208876739332], [50.219236896561,-5.03197341325304],

[50.2192842395788,-5.03183467068126], [50.2193486818289,-5.03163364030192],

[50.2194166623185,-5.0314245617779], [50.2194866323306,-5.03120817802056],

[50.2195223954438,-5.03110290946137], [50.2194709111164,-5.0310488897745],

[50.2194034888882,-5.03099890667651], [50.2193599249434,-5.03097917883467],

[50.2193323631299,-5.03098051518324], [50.2191676689509,-5.03099362351226],

[50.2190536737575,-5.03100125481053], [50.2189238837575,-5.03101433362179],

[50.2188490466402,-5.03102094343101], [50.2187618347501,-5.03103293725395],

[50.2186994992904,-5.03103963894282], [50.2186175448648,-5.03106388334751],

[50.2185650434484,-5.03108326609206], [50.2185098488271,-5.03111621775161],

[50.2184492218267,-5.03115050719329], [50.2183849356426,-5.0311974629876],

[50.2182986155336,-5.03127176230174], [50.2182370115394,-5.03132968340609],

[50.2182074759893,-5.03135837373436], [50.218161194385,-5.03129459087531],

[50.2181332921546,-5.03125384523508], [50.2181182100732,-5.03123199869069],

[50.2180965730085,-5.03122347604685], [50.2180819645023,-5.03118693850962],

[50.2180599211892,-5.03113885358917], [50.2180128890929,-5.0310417960669],

[50.2179731042628,-5.03094968478653], [50.2179399281735,-5.03087663940977],

[50.2179118444489,-5.03079115888735], [50.2178869243345,-5.03070854289457],

[50.2178572263374,-5.03058496603314], [50.2178407313537,-5.03050008051233],

[50.2178300296128,-5.03043448937955], [50.217819318233,-5.03034169891233],

[50.2178126947076,-5.03025771987325], [50.2178080327967,-5.03011582255187],

[50.2178027745949,-5.0299898702218], [50.2177988137943,-5.02982109907221],

[50.2177952098955,-5.02973170359652], [50.2177777589327,-5.02962138175845],
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[50.2177403914202,-5.02941936877241], [50.2177229283245,-5.02931984177061],

[50.2177291631597,-5.02931533000221], [50.2177261954211,-5.02929116777582],

[50.217721881416,-5.0292565454579], [50.217720248971,-5.02924326323521],

[50.2177740396714,-5.0292158289202], [50.2178343554679,-5.02915207580042],

[50.217965291746,-5.02901232380912], [50.2179939585898,-5.02904792903031],

[50.2180287893502,-5.02908518678971], [50.2181017935137,-5.02909710449908],

[50.2181415991463,-5.02904368747491], [50.2182228443178,-5.02894663058667],

[50.2182562357388,-5.02893907310692], [50.2183382837204,-5.02893880556187],

[50.2185343382803,-5.02895459666445], [50.2191673918607,-5.02916394747559],

[50.2194031335327,-5.02925151661083], [50.2194498462647,-5.02926779717598],

[50.2194935012137,-5.0292771541154], [50.2195636679801,-5.02928749066873],

[50.2196369561306,-5.02929886635747], [50.219700628958,-5.02930640782911],

[50.2197594055112,-5.02930508640679], [50.2197984250399,-5.02929213733175],

[50.2198139847335,-5.0292819072445], [50.2198208336185,-5.02927799503376],

[50.2198711510156,-5.029249217832], [50.2199069601201,-5.02928345475597],

[50.2199118761687,-5.02928811277674], [50.2199257341624,-5.02930862009445],

[50.2199766812382,-5.02931086832522], [50.2200524081954,-5.02931496784653],

[50.22009707597,-5.02931653761827], [50.2201998213452,-5.02932978091553],

[50.2202290213686,-5.02934495166146], [50.2202713203535,-5.02935800848286],

[50.2203093706206,-5.02936841246261], [50.2203500113496,-5.02938641166285],

[50.2204016312692,-5.0294111358437], [50.2204684928032,-5.02945505332346],

[50.2204721843995,-5.02945837192501], [50.2204823757136,-5.02946771089269],

[50.2205873319236,-5.02952722321107], [50.2206652450396,-5.02956819629406],

[50.2208024674153,-5.02970462613922], [50.2209129065961,-5.02981944891903],

[50.2209834405784,-5.02990187740273], [50.2210135967059,-5.02993211177232],

[50.2210337140643,-5.02995750335873], [50.2210878991256,-5.03003903577967],

[50.2212175817345,-5.03025406842027], [50.2212532658583,-5.03031031213483],

[50.2213139541113,-5.03042184208553], [50.2213436978375,-5.03049888102952],

[50.2213614070639,-5.03055104066469], [50.2213759667571,-5.03061702160782],

[50.2213823166638,-5.03065289752919], [50.2213708053627,-5.03077681430496],

[50.2213581629309,-5.03087514102619], [50.2213356550803,-5.03100677277196],

[50.2212894010933,-5.03113830018257], [50.2212450130456,-5.03129826810097],

[50.2212100841322,-5.03138536591391], [50.2211716598514,-5.03149607749077],

[50.2211350312528,-5.03157591651112], [50.2210836111339,-5.03169856229815],

[50.2210527035876,-5.03176600495918], [50.2210252953535,-5.03184068001967],

[50.2209627148797,-5.03207029765631], [50.2209493108197,-5.03208753409111],

[50.221286262841,-5.03238821327434], [50.2215059203276,-5.03258863303301],

[50.2215099564341,-5.03259253466135], [50.2214973855158,-5.03265707499599],

[50.2214777685137,-5.03273995631438], [50.2213966706878,-5.03308603607941],

[50.2213493764001,-5.03327105594592], [50.221297310934,-5.03335636364158],

[50.2208676527588,-5.03382192292377], [50.2207924593391,-5.03392132392392]
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label.overview: Heritage Category: Park and Garden

Grade: II*

List Entry Number: 1000656

Date first listed: 11-Jun-1987

Details

A mid C18 park and early and late C19 pleasure grounds, together with a mid and late C20 woodland garden.

HISTORIC DEVELOPMENT

Trelissick appears to have existed as a farm by the late C13; in 1705 this was occupied by the Lawrence family, who had

probably been established there since the mid or late C17. Edward Lawrence leased part of the manor of Trevilla including

Trelissick in 1747 from John Willyams, and was succeeded by his son, John, in 1750. Soon after inheriting, John Lawrence

built a mansion at Trelissick to the design of Edmund Davey and laid out a small park. When Lawrence died in 1790, the estate

was divided, the larger portion being held by his widow. Trelissick was let to Francis Pender, while another portion of the

estate, including King Harry Quay, was let to Ralph Allen Daniell. In 1802 Trelissick was described in the Royal Cornwall

Gazette as standing 'much elevated', with grounds including a 'large walled garden well cloathed with fruit trees, a good orchard

behind the house and a handsome lawn in front'. The Lawrence family experienced financial difficulties after 1790, and in 1805

Trelissick was offered for sale as the result of legal action by the family's creditors, including Ralph Allen Daniell. Daniell,

who now acquired Trelissick, was the son of a wealthy tin and copper mine owner, Thomas 'Guinea-a-Minute' Daniell and his

wife, the niece and heiress of Ralph Allen of Prior Park, Bath (qv). R A Daniell expanded and developed the C18 park, creating

rides through woodland to the north and south of the house; these developments are shown on an estate plan of c 1821, which

also includes a vignette view of the house and park from the south. When Daniell died in 1823 the estate passed to his son

Thomas, who in 1825 commissioned the architect P F Robinson to enlarge and remodel the existing house. Robinson's design

was published as an example of a 'Residence in the Grecian Style' in his Designs for Ornamental Villas (1827). In the same

year it was noted that 'the plantations and shrubberies round the mansion are extremely beautiful, especially the latter, which

abound with many varieties of choice shrubs' (Ackerman 1827). Agricultural and mining depressions in the early C19 left

Thomas Daniell's fortune depleted, and in 1831 he was declared bankrupt. Trelissick came into the hands of Viscount Falmouth

of Tregothnan (qv) who held a mortgage over it; the house remained unoccupied from 1832 to 1844, and Lord Falmouth tried,

unsuccessfully, to sell the property in 1837 and 1839. Finally, in 1844, he sold it to John Davies Gilbert (1811-54) who had

inherited the manor of Eastbourne in Sussex, which he began to develop as a fashionable resort. Gilbert restored the neglected

house and pleasure grounds, but at his death in 1854 his son and heir, Carew Davies Gilbert, was still a minor. After coming

of age, Carew Gilbert commissioned Piers St Aubyn to make additions to the house, and developed an extensive collection of

conifers and other plants in the pleasure grounds; many of these were derived from his extensive foreign travels in the late C19.

The estate was let in 1899 to George Cookson who further developed the gardens and pleasure grounds, these being described

in Gardeners' Chronicle in 1894, 1895, and 1901. When Carew Davies died in 1913 the estate was divided, and the house and

gardens were let to Leonard Daneham Cunliffe, a former Governor of the Bank of England. Cunliffe purchased the freehold

interest in 1928, and at his death in 1937 this passed to his step-daughter, Mrs Ida Copeland and her husband. Until 1948 Mr

and Mrs Copeland lived in Staffordshire where Mr Copeland was managing director of the china company W T Copeland and

Sons Ltd; many of the flowers painted on their Spode china were grown at Trelissick. Already in the 1930s the Copelands

had begun to develop the gardens north and east of the house, introducing a collection of rhododendrons obtained from Lord

Aberconway's garden at Bodnant, north Wales, and from George Johnstone of Trewithen, Cornwall (qv). In 1955 Mrs Copeland

gave 376 acres (c 156ha) of garden, park, and woodland to the National Trust while the mansion remained the family home
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and passed to Mrs Copeland's son at her death in 1964. The National Trust has continued the development of the gardens in

the second half of the C20, and today (2000) the site remains in divided ownership.

DESCRIPTION

LOCATION, AREA, BOUNDARIES, LANDFORM, SETTING Trelissick is situated c 4.5km south of Truro, to the west of

the River Fal and to the north of Carrick Roads. The c 92ha site comprises some 10ha of gardens and pleasure grounds, and

c 82ha of parkland and woodland rides. To the north the site is bounded by Lamouth Creek, while to the north-east, east, and

south it adjoins the River Fal. To the south-west lies Channals Creek, the head of which is dammed to form a lake, while to

the west the site adjoins agricultural land. The B3289 road runs from west to east through the site to reach King Harry Ferry

c 300m east of the house. The site occupies a shoulder of high ground from which the land drops steeply to the water to the

north, east, and south. There are extensive views south and south-west down the River Fal to Carrick Roads and Pendennis

Castle, while to the east there are views across the River Fal to the wooded west-facing slopes on the opposite shore. To the

north-east there is a vista up the River Fal to Tregothnan (qv). To the south-west Pill Farm (outside the site here registered)

forms a backdrop to the important coastal and river views from the park.

ENTRANCES AND APPROACHES Trelissick is approached from the B3289 road at a point approximately opposite Trelissick

Cottages, c 370m north-west of the house. A late C20 visitors' entrance leads to a drive which sweeps south and south-east

through an area of lawns and scattered trees to reach a car park c 100m north-east of the stables and Home Farm buildings

which today (2000) provide visitor facilities and an entrance to the gardens.

The approach to the mansion is also from the B3289 road at a point c 800m north-west of the house. New Lodge (listed grade

II), a mid C19 two-storey, Gothic-style stone structure stands to the north-east of the entrance which is marked by a pair of

square-section granite piers surmounted by caps with sloping sides and flat square bases which may formerly have supported

statues. To the north-east the Lodge adjoins a stone wall with granite copings which extends east along the B3289 road. Beyond

the entrance the tarmac drive sweeps south-east and east through the park. Some 240m south-east of the entrance a drive leads

south-west from the main drive to reach Lis Escop, a house built c 1965 to serve as an episcopal palace; the house is set in

pleasure grounds comprising lawns, shrubberies, and specimen trees. The main drive continues c 500m east-south-east through

the park, revealing a series of views south and south-west towards Carrick Roads, to reach a pair of low lattice-pattern, wrought-

iron gates supported on granite piers with pyramid caps which lead to the carriage court below the west facade of the house.

The carriage court is separated from the park to the west by a low stone wall. Some 640m north-west of the house and adjacent

to the B3289 road stands Old Lodge (listed grade II), a single-storey stuccoed building with a classical pediment to the west

supported by Doric columns. The Lodge was built c 1825, perhaps to the design of P F Robinson.

The west drive was initially laid out for Thomas Daniell c 1825 when the public road to the north of the house (today the B3289

road) was diverted to its present course and Old Lodge was constructed; this arrangement is shown on the Tithe map of 1842.

Archaeological traces of the former road survive in the park adjacent to the late C20 metal fence which marks the southern

boundary of the car park. Following the sale of the estate to John Davies Gilbert in 1844 the course of the west drive was altered

and extended further west, and New Lodge and the present entrance were built. This new arrangement was established before

1878 when it was shown on the 25" OS map.

A service drive approaches the stables and Home Farm from the B3289 road at a point c 130m north-north-west of the house.

The stables and carriage house (listed grade II) are U-shaped on plan and are constructed in brick under hipped slate roofs; they

were built in the mid C19. Two early or mid C19 rubble-stone barns (both listed grade II) stand c 80m north-west of the house;

these have been converted to serve as visitor facilities.

PRINCIPAL BUILDING Trelissick (listed grade II*) stands on a level terrace above a south-facing slope which falls away to

the River Fal. The house is constructed in stucco over rubble and brick under hipped slate roofs, and comprises two storeys lit by

sash windows, with attic dormers on the west facade. The entrance or west facade has an off-centre, single-storey Doric portico,

while the symmetrical south facade, which overlooks the park, has a central Ionic portico, approached by a flight of stone steps,

which rises to the full height of the building. At the east end of the south facade is a single-storey solarium constructed in stone

with tall windows, a glazed roof, and a centrally placed Ionic portico. Service ranges extend to the north of the principal block.
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The present mansion contains the core of a mid C18 house built for John Lawrence by Edmund Davey. By c 1820 this building

comprised a central block with a ground-floor classical loggia, flanked to east and west by single-storey wings; this building

is illustrated on the estate plan of c 1821. In 1825 P F Robinson remodelled the existing house, adding the present south and

west porticos and a classically inspired parapet concealing flat roofs; this house was engraved by Thomas Allom in 1831. The

building assumed its present form in the late C19 when Piers St Aubyn added a second storey to the east and west wings for

Carew Davies Gilbert. The solarium to the east of the house was constructed by L D Cunliffe in 1933 to replace an earlier

timber conservatory.

GARDENS AND PLEASURE GROUNDS The informal gardens and pleasure grounds are situated principally to the east and

south-east of the house, with a formal terrace to the south separating the house from the park.

The terrace below the south facade of the house is gravelled, and is retained to the south by a low stone wall with granite copings

which returns to east and west. A wide gravel walk leads west to an area of lawns and evergreen shrubbery which adjoins the

carriage court, while a similar walk leads east to the pleasure grounds. Passing through a pair of low wrought-iron gates, this

walk, known as the 'Shaded Walk', leads c 80m south-east through an area of mature trees underplanted with ornamental shrubs

to reach a late C20 tunnel arbour which leads to a late C19 rustic timber summerhouse overlooking a tennis lawn. The lawn is

retained to the west by a late C20 ha-ha which replaces late C19 metal estate fencing (guidebook), allowing wide views across

the park to Carrick Roads and to the house. To the north, east, and south-east the lawn is enclosed by ornamental shrubbery.

The tennis lawn was initially created as a croquet lawn by George Cookson who leased Trelissick in 1899. From the tennis

lawn an informal path descends south-east to reach further walks in South Wood. Two parallel terraced walks extend c 500m

south through mature mixed woodland underplanted with an extensive collection of ornamental shrubs on the east-facing slope

above the River Fal; a third parallel walk or ride passes through woodland between the boundary of the garden and the river.

Some 560m south-east of the house the upper walk reaches an hexagonal rustic timber and thatch summerhouse. Constructed

in 1996 to the design of Paul Edwards, the summerhouse stands on a rocky outcrop and affords views east across the River

Fal to Penperth. Stone steps descend the rocks adjacent and to the north of the summerhouse to reach the lower walk which

returns north to reach the pleasure grounds east of the house.

A broad gravel walk extends east from the late C20 visitors' entrance c 50m north of the house, and passes to the south of a lawn

which occupies the north-facing slope to the east of the kitchen garden. The lawn is planted with mature specimen conifers and

groups of ornamental trees and shrubs, while the south and east walls of the kitchen garden are screened by deep beds planted

with ornamental shrubs and herbaceous plants. Similar planting encloses the lawn to the north, returning to the east to merge

with the ornamental trees, shrubs, and water-loving plants in The Dell c 200m north-east of the house. The lawn was developed

in the mid and late C19 on the site of an orchard which is shown on the estate survey of c 1821.

The Dell comprises a valley and north-facing slope bounded to the north by the B3289 road which extends east to the garden

boundary; it is planted with a collection of large-leaved rhododendrons and tree ferns, together with hybrid daffodils raised

by William Copeland, brother of Ronald Copeland, which are named after members of the latter's family (ibid). The principal

gravel walk, known as the Hydrangea Walk, continues east of the lawn to reach a further north-east-facing glade, from which

there is a view north-east towards Tregothnan (qv). To the south the walk is bordered by mature trees underplanted with a

collection of rhododendrons and camellias, through which pass a series of curvilinear paths.

Some 80m north-east of the house a walk leads north, passing to the east of the lawn and to the west of The Dell, to reach a

late C20 rustic timber footbridge which is carried on early C20 brick abutments across the B3289 road to reach a further area

of pleasure grounds situated on a south-facing slope to the north of the road. This area, known as Carcaddon, was developed

as pleasure grounds c 1960, and comprises lawns divided by specimen trees and conifers, and groups of ornamental shrubs

including rhododendrons, camellias, magnolias, and hydrangeas underplanted with spring bulbs. A thatched rustic timber

summerhouse stands towards the top of the slope c 250m north-east of the house. The footbridge leading to Carcaddon originally

led from the pleasure grounds to the extensive network of woodland walks and rides which follow the shore of the River Fal

and Lamouth Creek to the north of the B3289 road.
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A further area of detached pleasure grounds is situated in the valley north-west of Channals Creek c 380m south-west of the

house. A series of walks passes through mature woodland which adjoins an approximately triangular-shaped lake which was

formed in the mid C19 by damming the head of the creek. On the west bank of the lake, c 560m south-west of the house, stand

the ruins of a C19 cottage, while to the north of the lake a small cascade is ornamented with quartz boulders (LUC 1993). The

woodland includes exotic moisture-loving plants and Chusan palms. In the late C19 and early C20 the lake was noted for its

waterlilies, including many rare varieties (Gardeners' Chronicle 1894). A walk continues south from the lake, passing through

coastal woodland with views north-east to Trelissick park and south-east across the River Fal to Turnaware Point. The lake and

its associated pleasure grounds, and the coastal walks and woodland were developed in the mid and late C19 by John Davies

Gilbert and Carew Davies Gilbert.

PARK The park is situated principally to the south, west, and north-west of the house, with further coastal woodland walks and

rides to the east and north. To the south and west of the house the park comprises undulating pasture with scattered specimen

trees and small plantations which drops gently south towards the River Fal and Channals Creek. To the west the park adjoins the

pleasure grounds associated with the lake north of Channals Creek, while there are further boundary plantations to the west and

north-west. To the east the park is bounded by South Wood and the pleasure grounds south-east of the house. A walk or ride c

600m south of the house leads east round the headland east of Channals Creek, before entering woodland on the west bank of the

River Fal. Continuing c 750m north, the walk today (2000) crosses the B3289 road at a point c 100m west of King Harry Ferry.

This mid C20 walk outside the garden boundary replaces the lower terrace walk which was taken into the pleasure grounds in

the late C19. To the north of the public road the walk or ride continues parallel to the River Fal, passing through North Wood

and sweeping west along the southern shore of Lamouth Creek through the early C19 Stiches Plantation and Namphillows

Wood. A walk ascends south through Namphillows Wood to cross the B3289 road adjacent to Old Lodge, while further walks

continue west and south-west through the mid C19 Delabole Wood. Stiches Plantation and Namphillows Wood form the east

and west boundaries to a further area of park which is situated on a north-facing slope c 450m north-west of the house.

The park to the south and west of the house was initially created in the mid C18 to complement the new house built by John

Lawrence in 1750. A park is marked on a survey of 1817, while by 1813 the 1" OS map shows North and South Wood to

be established. The network of walks, rides, and carriage drives through the park and associated woodlands are shown on the

estate survey of c 1821, indicating that Ralph Allen Daniell was responsible for laying out the park in its present form. The

extension of the rides to the north-west through Namphillows Wood and the creation of Delabole Wood and the north-west

park took place in the mid and late C19 after the estate was purchased by John Davies Gilbert.

KITCHEN GARDEN The kitchen garden is situated on a gentle east-facing slope c 50m north of the house, immediately to the

east of the former Home Farm and stables. Irregularly shaped on plan, the garden is enclosed by brick walls c 3m high (listed

grade II), and is today (2000) largely laid to grass with a section to the west separated by timber fences to form a plant sales area.

To the north of the garden, and separated from it by a brick wall, is a rectangular yard enclosed by brick walls which contains

bothies, sheds, and store rooms. To the south-west of the garden and outside its walls, an approximately triangular-shaped area

is enclosed to the south-west by low brick walls. Known as the Cutting Garden or Parsley Garden, this area is today adjacent to

the visitors' entrance to the garden and has a partially ornamental treatment; in the C19 it was used for the cultivation of early

vegetables and herbs (guidebook). Opposite the Parsley Garden a north-east-facing triangular-shaped lawn is planted with late

C20 specimen figs; these replaced C19 specimens killed in 1979 (ibid). The kitchen garden, Parsley Garden, and Fig Garden

are shown in their present form on the estate survey of c 1821.

Some 20m north-west of the kitchen garden and attached to the stone wall separating the service yard from the B3289 road is

the Water Tower (listed grade II), a three-storey stone tower with a conical slate roof. This Gothic-style structure was erected

as a water tower in the early C19 by Ralph Allen Daniell or his son Thomas; in the mid C19 it was converted into an apple

store, and is today (2000) in domestic use.

To the north of the B3289 road and c 190m north-west of the house, a south-facing meadow has been planted in the late C20

as an orchard using a collection of Cornish apple varieties underplanted with Cornish varieties of daffodil (ibid).
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